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CORPORATE  DISCLOSURE  STATEMENT 

 
 

     Pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Federal Rules of Appellate Procedure, 

appellant is not a publicly held corporation, does not issue stock and does not 

have a parent corporation that owns 10% or more of its stock. 
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STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION 

 
 

     The District Court and this Court of Appeals have jurisdiction pursuant to  

28 U.S.C. Section 1331 (federal question).  

     This is an appeal from a final judgment of the District Court disposing of all 

claims with respect to all parties, and falls within this Court’s appellate 

jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. Section 1291. The District Court entered final 

judgment on May 7, 2014. The Notice of Appeal was timely filed on June 5, 

2014.  
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE  

     Yelp posted a false, defaming, libelous per se review on Google.com next to 
 
Appellant Kimzey's paid advertising and then asked him to pay $300.00 a month 
 
to improve his now one star rated business, when he refused Yelp published 
 
more defaming content and then closed his Yelp account access. The false 
 
review first appeared on Yelp.com when a competitor with a similar business 
 
name "Redmond Mobile" moved his negative review to Appellant Kimzey's 
 
business profile. Yelp then added Appellant Kimzey's business name "Redmond 
 
Mobile Locksmith" to the heading and to the first line of the review together 
 
with a similar one star rating image Docket 20, Exhibit 1, and posted that on  
 
Google by adding Google tags to the source code, and sending it to Google. 
 
     After 3 years the false content still appears, and an additional fraudulent 
 
statement has been added that says there is a receipt as proof. DKT. 22  
 
Exhibit 8. This negates the advertising Appellant Kimzey pays Google monthly. 
 
Yelp rates the dishonest competitor's business five stars (he pays Yelp), even 
 
though there are numerous complaints of criminal activity in his reviews Docket 
 
22, Exhibit 11, these five star advertisements appear on Kimzey's one star 
 
rated business profile Docket 22, Exhibit 9. Appellant Kimzey has no customer 
 
complaints and has lost more than $219,000.00 in sales revenue as of September 
 
2013 as a result of the false review and false one star rating.  
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STATEMENT OF THE PARTIES 
 

Plaintiff-Appellant Kimzey 
 

     Plaintiff-Appellant Kimzey (hereinafter referred to as Appellant Kimzey) 

Appellant Kimzey is owner of Redmond Locksmith / Redmond Mobile Locksmith,   

Redmond Locksmith .com phone 425-881-7777 AKA “Redmond Locksmith” or 

“Redmond Mobile Locksmith”.  Located in Redmond WA (Seattle’s Eastside). 

Defendant-Appellee Yelp Inc. or Yelp.com  

     Appellee Yelp Inc. is a Delaware Corporation with its main headquarters located 

in San Francisco, CA. Yelp is a publicly traded company stock symbol YELP. 

Yelp owns and is most well known for it’s nationwide business directory in which they 

post business reviews and rate businesses with a commonly recognized one to five star 

rating system.  Yelp’s revenue comes from advertising sales. Yelp is the “User” of 

Google’s “Interactive Computer Service”, with respect to 47 USC Section 230. Yelp 

uses Google’s website to post there reviews for commercial promotional purpose to 

drive traffic to the Yelp website, therefore Yelp is a “Content Provider”, with respect to 

Communications Decency Act “CDA” 47 USC Section 230. 

Google or Google.com is an “Internet Search Engine” 

     Google.com is where the libelous content was posted by Yelp. Google is how the 

consumer searches for information on the Internet. Google is the most-used Internet 

Web Search (Wikipedia), Google does not take Yelp’s content Docket 20, Exhibit 5.  
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“Redmond Mobile” Introduced by US District Court into Dismissal Order    

     Appellant Kimzey does not own and has never used the trade name “Redmond   

Mobile”.  Redmond Mobile is another company, also located in Redmond WA, phone 

number 425-318-4257. 

“Sarah K” Introduced by US District Court into Dismissal Order   

     “Sarah K” is an alias, whose true identity (documented evidence shows) is Mr. Boten 

Sason (citizen of the Country of Israel) and is the owner of “Redmond Mobile”, 

Fast Locksmith, and Loyal Locksmith, all associated with a consumer scheme.    

  

Introduction 

      Kimzey v. Yelp Inc. lawsuit is based on Libelous Per Se content in words 

and image, (See below: from DKT. 20, Exhibit 1) that Yelp posted on 

Google.com, as a shock value commercial promotional gimmick to drive traffic 

to the Yelp website by adding Appellant Kimzey’s business name “Redmond 

Mobile Locksmith” to a negative review originally made about another company 

called “Redmond Mobile”.    
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     However the US District Court’s Dismissal is based on a completely   

different review, (See below). The District Court erroneously dismissed, citing a 

review introduced by Yelp DKT. # 11-1, which is about a company named 

“Redmond Mobile” also located in Redmond WA. (Ref: Line 6) “Redmond 

Mobile” is not Appellant Kimzey's business, nor is it the basis for the complaint.  

 

   Order	
  of	
  Dismissal	
  -­‐	
  DKT.	
  #	
  26	
  order-­‐2,	
  –	
  (paragraph	
  35.) 

	
  

DKT.	
  #	
  11-­‐1	
  (Ex.	
  A	
  to	
  MacBean	
  Decl.)	
  	
  	
  	
  

 

     This same review as it appears on Appellant Kimzey's business profile 

 on Yelp.com. DKT. 22. Exhibit 9. (See below – Ref: line 7)  
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  The review as it first appeared on the Internet, prior to September 2011 (See 

Below), author “Sarah”, not “Sarah K”. DKT. # 22, Exhibit 10.  
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     The complaints made in Kimzey v. Yelp Inc. are the same complaints made 

by business owners nationwide to the Federal Trade Commission “FTC”,  

865 similar complaints were filed with the FTC as of July 2013 (DKT 1. 

paragraph 12), complaints of false reviews, defamation, libel, extortion, unfair 

business practice, and unfair competition.  

      Kimzey v. Yelp Inc. challenges immunity offered by 47 USC section 230(c) 

for libel, defamation, and false speech and for libelous per se content “created 

and developed” by Yelp and published on Google.com. Yelp is the “User” of 

Google’s interactive computer service, and the speaker of the content at issue, 

and Google is the provider of the “Interactive computer service”, therefore 

Google is immune under 47 USC section 230(c), not Yelp.    

     Yelp does not use the star rating system for “classification” purposes, for 

which it implies or for which it was intended and is most widely recognized.   

STANDARD OF REVIEW 
 

 

     A district court’s grant of a motion to dismiss under Rule 12(b)(6) is reviewed 

de novo. Knievel v. ESPN, 393 F.3d 1068, 1072 (9th Cir. 2005). 

     When a grant of a motion to dismiss is reviewed, the Court of Appeals will, 

“accept all factual allegations in the complaint as true and construe the pleadings 

in the light most favorable to the nonmoving party.” Id. See also, Chang v. Chen, 

80 F.3d 1293, 1296 (9th Cir.1996).   

                                                         7 

  Case: 14-35487, 10/14/2014, ID: 9276529, DktEntry: 8-1, Page 11 of 18
(11 of 33)



	
  
 

     The court generally may not consider material beyond the pleadings in ruling 

on a motion to dismiss.  Lee v. City of Los Angeles, 250 F.3d 668, 688 (9th Cir. 

2001).     

     The pleadings of pro se complainants are held to less stringent standards  
 
 

than those of licensed attorneys. Haines v. Kerner, 404 U.S. 519, 520 (1972).   
 
 

 
STATEMENT OF FACTS 

 
 
    Appellant’s claims against Yelp were not subject to dismissal under a Rule 

12(b)(6) motion to dismiss because the appellant alleged that Yelp was the author 

of the information at issue. The content at issue was created by Yelp, at which 

Yelp added “Redmond Mobile Locksmith” to a review about another company 

named “Redmond Mobile” and then posted that content on Google’s website as 

a commercial shock value promotional gimmick.     

     Section 230 of the CDA immunizes providers of interactive computer  
        
 services against liability arising from content created by third parties: “This 
 
 grant of immunity applies only if the interactive computer service provider is 
 
not also an ‘information content provider,’ which is defined as someone who is 
 
“responsible in whole or in part, for the creation or development of’ the  
 
offending content.” Id. § 230(f)(3); Fair Housing Council, 521 F.3d at 1162.  
 
“A website operator can be both a service provider and a content provider, but as 
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 to content that it creates itself, or is ‘responsible, in whole or in part’ for creating 
 
 or developing, the website is also a content provider.” Fair Housing Council, 
 
16 521 F.3d at 1162. 
  
      The District Court’s erroneous interpretation of the “CDA” results in a 

statutory interpretation that is unsupportable because it condones illegal conduct 

prohibited by federal statute. Various federal statutes prohibit extortion. If an 

individual makes a threat with intent to extort, and that threat travels though 

interstate commerce, including the telephone or internet, that is a violation of 18 

U.S.C. §§ 875– 877.  Section 875(d). A similar criminal prohibition is the Hobbs 

Act, 18 U.S.C. § 1951. 

        As discussed above, when ruling on the Rule 12(b)(6) motion, the District 

Court is to accept the factual allegations of the complaint as true and  

must draw all reasonable inferences in favor of the plaintiff. Pareto v. F.D.I.C., 

139 F.3d 696, 699 (9th Cir. 1998). That did not occur. Likewise, a plaintiff must 

only plead “enough facts to state a claim to relief that is plausible on its face.” 

Bell Atl. Corp. v. Twombly, 550 U.S. 544, 569 (2007). Plaintiff did so with 

specific and articulate facts. 

     Threats sufficient to constitute extortion or attempted extortion – may be 

implied. United States v. Lisinski 728 F.2d 887, 891 (1984) (“The implied threat  
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will usually be that, unless the victim cooperates with the extortionist, economic 

loss will result”); United States v. Rivera Rangel, 396 F.3d 476, 484 (1st Cir. 

2005)     

  PLAINTIFF HAS ARTICLE III STANDING 
  

     Article III of the Constitution confers standing on a party if the party can 

demonstrate: “(1) it has suffered ‘injury in fact’ that is that the injury will   

redressed by a favorable decision.” Friends of the Earth, Inc. v. Laidlaw Envtl. 

Serv., 528. Appellant Kimzey has suffered, injury in fact. 

  US DISTRICT COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR       

 

 By basing the Dismissal Order (Docket #2 Order-2) on a Yelp review that 

 defendant Yelp provided, Exhibit Docket #11-1 (Exhibit A to MacBean 

 Declaration).    

       The Court committed reversible error when it stated that Kimzey v. Yelp Inc.  

 is based on a review which is made about a company named “Redmond Mobile” 

 that is not a party to this lawsuit.  

      The Court committed reversible error by stating “Sarah K” “created and  

 developed” the review, which documented evidence shows “Sarah K” did not. 

     The Court committed reversible error when it stated the “CDA section 230” 

immunizes Yelp entirely from the lawsuit. 

         The Court committed reversible error by stating “All of the plaintiff’s claims  

rely on Statements made on Yelp” Docket 26, Order-2, Line 1,2. 
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     The Court committed reversible error by stating: “Rather, the Yelp review 

itself makes clear that the individual who “created and developed” the 

review is a user named “Sarah K.” Thus, “Sarah K” is the information 

content provider of the reviews, not Yelp” DKT 26. Page 5.  

    The Court committed reversible error: 

a. “Sarah K” did not create or develop the review cited, a reviewer 

named “Sarah” created the content cited by the Court. DKT. 26. Paragraph 35. 

b. “Sarah K” was never mentioned in the original complaint and has  

erroneously been introduced, outside of the Pleadings.   

 

 
STATEMENT OF CASE, US DISTRICT COURT, CA 

      Curry v. Yelp Inc. 3: 2014-cv-03547 US District Court for the Northern 

District of CA. has arisen out of statements that appear in Kimzey v. Yelp Inc.,  

Docket 1. Page 4. Paragraph 14. Regarding false statements made by Yelp Inc.  

in their S-1 filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission “SEC”, that 

Yelp’s reviews are “First Hand”.  

  

                                     CONCLUSION 

 
  

      For the foregoing reasons Appellant Kimzey respectfully requests that the 

Court of Appeals reverse the US District Court Order Dismissing Appellant 

Kimzey’s Complaint, and remand the action to the US District Court for further  
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proceedings and trial. Appellant Kimzey also for the foregoing reasons and 

entire record herein respectfully requests Yelp’s Cross-Claim and motion for 

Anti-SLAPP be denied. Appellant Kimzey brings this action on behalf of 

himself, and all others similarly situated, and the Public (non sponsors). Yelp’s 

actions have no countervailing benefit to the Public or Consumers when 

weighed against the harm caused by such practices. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Douglas  L.  Kimzey 

  
 

Dated October 14, 2014             /s/ Douglas L. Kimzey  
 

Douglas L. Kimzey / Appellant / Pro Se 
 
P.O. Box 50250 
 
Bellevue WA 98015 
 
WedgeCo123@msn.com 
 
425-881-7777 
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STATEMENT OF RELATED CASES  

            PURSUANT TO NINTH CIRCUIT RULE 28-2.6 

 
 
     Appellant Kimzey is unaware of any pending related cases before the Ninth   

Circuit Court of Appeals as defined in Ninth Circuit Rule 28-2.6. 

Respectfully submitted,   

Douglas L. Kimzey 

 

 
Dated October 14, 2014             /s/ Douglas L. Kimzey  
 
                                                              Douglas L. Kimzey / Appellant / Pro Se 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

      I certify that on October 14, 2014 I filed the forgoing document using the 

Courts CM/ ECF system which will send notification of such filing to  

Defendant-Appellee who is registered with the Courts CM/ECF system. 

 

  

Dated: October 14, 2014                        /s/ Douglas L. Kimzey  
 
Douglas L. Kimzey / Appellant / Pro Se 
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